
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Rick O’Farrell, Interim Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Nichola Turnbull 
Email: nichola.turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622617 
Date: Wednesday, 21 December 2022 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL to be 
held in CEREMONY ROOM - HEXHAM HOUSE on TUESDAY, 10 JANUARY 2023 at 4.00 
PM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
Rick O’Farrell 
Interim Chief Executive 
 

 

To Tynedale Local Area Council members as follows:- 

T Cessford (Chair), D Kennedy (Vice-Chair), A Scott (Vice-Chair (Planning)), A Dale, 
S Fairless-Aitken, C Horncastle, JI Hutchinson, N Morphet, N Oliver, J Riddle, A Sharp, 
G Stewart and H Waddell 

 

Public Document Pack



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 January 2023 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 
2.   MINUTES 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Tynedale Local Area Council, held on 15 
November 2022, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record, and 
signed by the Chair. 
 

(Pages 1 
- 16) 

 
3.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;    
  
a)      Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set 

out in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the 
interest, not participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in 
room. Where members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an 
executive function and is being considered by a Cabinet Member with 
a DPI they must notify the Monitoring Officer and arrange for 
somebody else to deal with the matter.   

  
b)      Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 

Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter 
and must not remain the room.   

  
c)       Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being  (and is 

not  DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to 
declare the interest and members may only speak on the matter if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the 
member must not take part in discussion or vote on the matter and 
must leave the room.   

  
d)      Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or 

close associate or a body included under the Other Registrable 
Interests column in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test 
set out at paragraph 9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they 
may remain in the meeting.   

  
e)      Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 

Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring 

 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 January 2023 

Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with it. 
  
NB Any member needing clarification must contact 
monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Members are referred to the 
Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please refer to 
the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
  

LOCAL AREA COUNCIL BUSINESS 
  
4.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

 
To reply to any questions received from members of the public, which may 
be received in writing in advance of the meeting or asked at the meeting. 
Questions can be asked about issues for which the Council has a 
responsibility. If questions are received in advance of meetings it will 
increase the likelihood of an answer being provided at the meeting. (Public 
question times take place on a bimonthly basis at Local Area Council 
meetings: in January, March, May, July, September and November each 
year.) 
  
As agreed by the County Council in February 2012, the management of 
local public question times is at the discretion of the Chair of the 
committee. 
  
Please note however that a question may possibly be rejected if it requires 
the disclosure of any categories of confidential or exempt information, 
namely information: 
  
1.      relating to any individual; 
2.      which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual; 
3.      relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person; 
4.      relating to any labour relations matters/negotiations; 
5.      restricted to legal proceedings; 
6.      about enforcement/enacting legal orders; 
7.      relating to the prevention, investigation of prosecution of crime.  
  
And/or: 
  
        is defamatory, frivolous or offensive; 
        it is substantially the same as a question which has been put at a 

meeting of this or another County Council committee in the past six 
months; 

        the request repeats an identical or very similar question from the same 
person; 

        the cost of providing an answer is disproportionate; 
        it is being separately addressed through the Council's complaints 

process; 
        it is not about a matter for which the Council has a responsibility or 

which affects the county; 
        it relates to planning, licensing and/or other regulatory applications; 
        it is a question that town/parish councils would normally be expected to 

 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk


 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 January 2023 

raise through other channels. 
  
If the Chair is of the opinion that a question is one which, for whatever 
reason, cannot properly be asked in an area meeting, he/she will disallow it 
and inform the resident of his/her decision. 
  
Copies of any written answers (without individuals' personal contact 
details) will be provided for members after the meeting and also be publicly 
available. 
  
Democratic Services will confirm the status of the progress on any 
previously requested written answers and follow up any related actions 
requested by the Local Area Council. 
  

5.   PETITIONS 
 
This item is to: 
  
a.      Receive any new petitions: to receive any new petitions.  The lead 

petitioner is entitled to briefly introduce their petition by providing a 
statement in writing, and a response to any petitions received will then 
be organised for a future meeting; 

  
b.      Consider reports on petitions previously received: 
  

i)    Wentworth Car Park & Alemouth Road Car Park, Hexham 
(attached) 

  
c.      Receive any updates on petitions for which a report was 

previously considered: any updates will be verbally reported at the 
meeting. 

 

(Pages 
17 - 24) 

 
6.   LOCAL SERVICES ISSUES 

 
To receive a verbal update from the Area Managers from Technical 
Services and Neighbourhood Services in attendance about any key recent, 
ongoing and/or future planned Local Services work for the attention of 
members of the Local Area Council, who will also then have the 
opportunity to raise issues with the Area Managers. 
 
The Area Managers have principal responsibility for highway services and 
environmental services, such as refuse collection, street cleansing and 
grounds maintenance, within the geographic boundaries of the Local Area 
Council. 
 

 

 
7.   BUDGET 2023-24 AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 

 
This presentation will outline the Council’s strategy to the 2023-24 Budget 
within the context of the Corporate Plan.   The presentation will provide 
details of the approach to setting the budget for the next financial year and 
the broad impact this will have on the delivery of services. 
 

 

 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 January 2023 

8.   LOCAL AREA COUNCIL WORK PROGRAMME 
 
To note the latest version of agreed items for future Local Area Council 
meetings (any suggestions for new agenda items will require confirmation 
by the Business Chair after the meeting). 
 

(Pages 
25 - 32) 

 
9.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting will be held on 14 February 2023. 
 

 

 
10.   URGENT BUSINESS 

 
To consider such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 



 

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 10 January 2023 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 10 January 2023 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 



 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 January 2023 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 

ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Tynedale Local Area Council, Tuesday, 10 January 2023 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 10 January 2023 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 

 1 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Tynedale Local Area Council held at Hexham House, 
Gilesgate, Hexham, Northumberland, NE46 3NH on Tuesday, 15 November 2022 at 
4.00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT 

 
Councillor T Cessford 

(Chair, in the Chair for agenda items 64-65, 73-81) 
 

A Scott 
(Vice-Chair (Planning) in the Chair, agenda items 66-72) 

 
MEMBERS 

 
A Dale (64-78) N Oliver 
SH Fairless-Aitken (64-79) JR Riddle (66-81) 
C Horncastle (64-72) A Sharp 
I Hutchinson G Stewart 
D Kennedy (69-79) H Waddell (64-79) 
N Morphet  

 
OFFICERS 

 
K Blyth Development Management Area 

Manager (West) 
M Bulman Solicitor 
R Campbell Senior Planning Officer 
G Cowell Business and Community 

Engagement Officer 
D Hunt Neighbourhood Services Area 

Manager 
D Laux Head of Technical Services 
R. McCartney Highways Infrastructure Manager 
A Olive Highways Delivery Area Manager 
E Scott Built Heritage and Design Officer 
P Soderquest Service Director - Housing and 

Public Protection 
N Turnbull Democratic Services Officer 
K Westerby Highways Delivery Manager 

 
ALSO PRESENT 

 
3 members of the public. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 2 

 
64.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Riddell who was 
delayed. 
 
 

65. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of Tynedale Local Area Council 
held on 11 October 2022, as circulated, be confirmed as a true record and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 

66. PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT MEETINGS 
 
The Chair advised members of the procedure which would be followed at the 
meeting. 
 
 

67. DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The committee was requested to decide the planning applications attached to 
the report using the powers delegated to it. Members were reminded of the 
principles which should govern their consideration of the applications, the 
procedure for handling representations, the requirement of conditions and the 
need for justifiable reasons for the granting of permission or refusal of 
planning applications. 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 

68. 21/04595/LBC 
Listed Building Consent for change of paint colour on front of building at 
Brew Bar, Market Square, Haltwhistle, NE49 0BL 
 
There were no questions arising from the site visit videos which had been 
circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
The Development Management Area Manager (West) referred to the 
significant debate on the application at the previous meeting and confirmed 
that some additional information had been circulated to members from the 
Built Heritage and Design Officer who was in attendance.  She stated that 
answers could be provided in response to the information emailed by the 
applicant to Members during the question part of the meeting.  She confirmed 
that the Council wanted to work with the applicant who had not been aware 
that consent had been required when they carried out the work. 
 

Page 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 3 

The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application with the aid of a 
powerpoint presentation. 
 
Mr Sam Jackson, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.  He made 
the following comments:- 
 

• The building had been painted prior to their redecoration. 

• Literature from Historic England (page 23, scenario 3): stated 
“Redecoration with impermeable paints, except where the building is 
already painted with impermeable paint, is not a like-for-like replication 
and needs LBC (Listed Building Consent).” 

• The Committee needed to be made aware that not enough emphasis had 
been put on this and needed to be made aware. 

• They were disappointed that the current committee report did not include 
information he had provided, namely a professional building report, 
supporting literature from Historic England and additional comments. 

• The application had been considered as if this was the first time the 
building had been painted since its original finish which was incorrect and 
confirmed by a professional. 

• It was therefore irrelevant what paint type they had used as the building 
had already been painted over its original finish. 

• Concern that the decision was focused on something which it seemed did 
not require consent. 

• The only issue under debate should be the paint colour.  At the previous 
meeting there was almost unanimous agreement that the building looked 
great, a view supported by Haltwhistle Town Council and the people of 
Haltwhistle themselves.  This clearly proved a public benefit which far 
outweighed the ‘less than substantial harm caused. 

 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided:- 
 

• Listed building consent had not been obtained previously when the ‘plastic 
based’ paint had previously been applied.  Permission would not be 
required if the building had been painted for upkeep or maintenance.  As 
permission had not been sought previously, enforcement action could be 
taken at any time against the current owner of the building. 

• It was suggested that due to the delicate nature of stone, the paint would 
need to be removed by hand with tools.  It was acknowledged that it would 
be challenging, costly and time consuming to remove.  ‘Sandblasting’ the 
front of the building to remove the paint would not be appropriate.  The 
officers were not stonemasons and unable to offer further guidance on the 
technique for paint removal which would need to be sought by the 
applicant. 

• 3 similar cases had recently been investigated in Haltwhistle with 
consistent approach regarding enforcement action.  One building had 
been changed back to an appropriate colour and the other was ongoing. 

• There was a maximum period of 10 years for enforcement action against 
planning regulations.  There was no maximum time frame for 

Page 3



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 4 

contraventions of Listed Building rules as action could be taken at any 
point in time. 

• Information regarding complaints leading to enforcement action were 

confidential. 

• The advice from Historic England was that Listed Building Consent was 
not required for repairs if the same type of paint and same colour were to 
be used.  Permission was required in this case as a different type of paint 
and different colour had been used and permission had not been obtained. 

• If information was provided to officers regarding possible unauthorised 
paint used on other buildings, they would be investigated.  However, if 
buildings were not listed, they might not have required permission. 

• The report provided by the applicant did not specify the type of masonry 
paint they said had been used of which there were different types.  The 
implication was that acrylic paint had been painted over a layer of acrylic 
paint. 

• Some photographs in the powerpoint slides depicted examples of the 
damage caused to stonework following application of impermeable paint to 
other historic buildings where water had collected at vulnerable joints.  
Moisture behind the paint would vaporise leading to the paint blistering 
and flaking and further damage from freeze thaw action.  Use of 
impermeable paint could also lead to internal dampness within the 
building. 

• A small number of higher status buildings in the town had been painted in 
bolder/darker colours.  This building had originally been finished with 
limewash as a traditional approach to protecting masonry from exposure 
to rainwater and frost damage where poorer quality stone had been used.  
The building was described as off-white in the listing entry.  The grey 
colour was modern in appearance whereas limewash tended to be off-
white or cream or earthy tones from natural based pigments. 

• Officers were unaware of sources of grants which the applicant could 
access.  Once a decision on the application was taken, officers would be 
happy to do what they could do assist the applicant. 

• There was photographic evidence which demonstrated that the grey paint 
was flaking although it was not extensive across the front elevation. 

• The damage from the use of permeable paint would be cumulative and 
take time and was based on scientific knowledge of how materials and 
buildings reacted. 

• If the application was refused, there could be flexibility regarding time 
limits of enforcement action which had to be reasonable and justified.  The 
timescale for removal of the paint might be longer than usual due to the 
nature of the work which would be weather dependent. 

• The committee had the following options: 
- The application be granted with the existing paint type and colour be 

approved and retained.  Permission would be needed in the future if 
the colour was to be changed. 

- The application be granted with a condition to remove the paint and 
reapply a suitable agreed paint within a certain period. 

• If Members wished to approve the application, they would need to 
conclude that the public benefit outweighed the harm identified.  If 

Page 4



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 5 

Members considered that the building was a community asset which 
contributed to the economic viability of the town, then approval of 
permission would not necessarily set a precedent when determining other 
perhaps similar applications. 

• Application of additional layers of plastic based paints would likely 
compound the problem of the stonework not being able to breathe. 

• It was thought unlikely that a mineral based paint would adhere or bind to 
the surface, if applied on top of a plastic based paint. 

• Whilst Councillors familiar with the premises believed the building not to 
have been painted internally, the officers were concerned that as the fabric 
had been sealed externally with the use of a plastic based paint, it would 
affect the ability of the building to breathe and increase moisture levels. 

• If consent were granted, inclusion of a condition requiring a formal 
application regarding a change of colour in the future could be possible, 
although if a plastic based paint was approved once it was suggested that 
it would be difficult to refuse when considered again. 

• If consent was granted, it would be difficult to include an informative 
regarding future consideration of the removal of the plastic-based paint 
and assistance.  The applicant was present at the meeting and aware of 
the suggestion about seeking assistance for grants to help him with the 
cost. 

 
Councillor Hutchinson proposed that Listed Building Consent be granted, 
contrary to the officer’s recommendation.  He discussed with officers whether 
the wording of conditions could be delegated to the Director of Planning in 
conjunction with the Chair or whether the application should be ‘minded to 
approve’ but deferred for conditions to be approved by the committee. 
 
The Development Management Area Manager (West) reminded the 
committee that this was a retrospective application and therefore any 
conditions would be few and not be unduly onerous.  This was also the 
second time the application had been to committee. 
 
The Solicitor referred to the test that any conditions had to be reasonable and 
proportionate.  She also asked the Councillor to state the reasons for his 
proposal which was contrary to the officer’s recommendation. 
 
Councillor Hutchinson proposed that Listed Building Consent be granted with 
the wording of conditions to be delegated to the Director of Planning in 
conjunction with the Chair.  He stated that he was concerned that the removal 
of the paint would cause damage to the building and be a detriment to the 
town if the cost of the work caused the business to close.  He also stated that 
he proposed that the existing grey colour be approved and not changed. 
 
The Development Management Area Manager (West) explained that if 
members were of the view that the less than substantial harm to the heritage 
asset was outweighed by the benefit to the public as the premises were an 
asset to the community and they were concerned that the cost of work could 
affect the economic viability of the business and thereafter the town. 
 

Page 5



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 6 

Councillor Sharp seconded Councillor Hutchinson’s proposal that consent be 
granted as it was supported by residents and the Town Council and the only 
objection was from Building Conservation. 
 
Whilst some members were concerned about the damage to the stonework if 
the applicant was required to remove the paint, others did not think the colour 
was suitable but did not want to compound the problem with another layer of 
paint.  Reference was also made to the reasons for conservation area 
designations and listed building status and that these should be upheld. 
 
Upon being put to the vote the results were as follows: - 
 
FOR: 3; AGAINST: 9; ABSTENTION: 0. 
 
The motional failed. 
 
Councillor Dale proposed the officer’s recommendation that Listed Building 
Consent be refused which was seconded by Councillor Fairless-Aitken. 
 
In answer to a question, the Development Management Area Manager (West) 
stated that conditions could not be included if the decision was that consent be 
refused.  However, officers were aware of the views expressed by members 
and would ensure that the applicant was given sufficient time for the work to 
be carried out.  She also suggested that in response to concerns regarding 
possible damage to the stonework from the paint removal, the applicant could 
be asked to work a sample area to enable the position to be monitored and 
reviewed. 
 
Upon being put to the vote the results were as follows: - 
 
FOR: 9; AGAINST: 3; ABSTENTION: 0. 
 
RESOLVED that Listed Building Consent be REFUSED for the reason set out 
in the report. 
 
 

69. 21/03549/FUL 
Retrospective planning permission is sought for the construction of one 
residential dwelling, with associated car parking and garden space, at 11 
The Forge in Gilsland 
 
There were no questions arising from the site visit videos which had been 
circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
The Planning Officer introduced the application with the aid of a powerpoint 
presentation and confirmed that there were no updates. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee, the following 
information was provided:- 
 

Page 6



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 7 

• The rear boundary fence had been adjusted with the repositioning of the 
building and was also located 1.5 metres further south, in comparison to 
the approved plans. 

• If the boundary was moved 1.5 metres further north back to the original 
position, it was considered that there would be insufficient outdoor amenity 
space.  The committee were required to consider the application as it was 
submitted and could not change the application site by reducing the 
garden. 

• The officers were unable to comment on the period of time between the 
plans being approved in 2015 and the submission of the application in 
2021.  The Parish Council had objected to the application.  The Director of 
Planning and the Chair and Vice Chair had considered whether the 
application should be considered by committee under the Scheme of 
Delegation. 

• The County Archeologist and Historic England were in agreement, after 
further consultation, that the development did not encroach into the 
Hadrian Wall scheduled monument although it was in the buffer zone and 
recommended removal of permitted development rights. 

• The error was made by the developer/builder and not the current 
applicant/owner who had bought the property in good faith.  However, the 
current owner would become liable if enforcement action was taken.  The 
remedy would be for the property to be demolished and rebuilt. 

• Building regulation would not normally involve cross reference of approved 
plans associated with planning permission.  Searches in the conveyancing 
process would reveal if there had been any enforcement action. 

 
Councillor Kennedy proposed acceptance of the officer’s recommendation to 
approve the application which was seconded by Councillor Fairless-Aitken. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED permission for the reasons and 
with the conditions as outlined in the report. 
 
 

70. 21/03984/FUL 
Planning permission is sought for the siting of one glamping pod for 
holiday accommodation purposes on land to the south of Hill Top, 
Lambley 
 
There were no questions arising from the site visit videos which had been 
circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application with the aid of a 
powerpoint presentation and confirmed that there were no updates. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided:- 
 

Page 7



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 8 

• Whilst the site was located on land between two residential dwellings, it 
was outside a settlement boundary in an isolated location which was 
classed as being in the open countryside. 

• Whilst former Tynedale policies were supportive of tourism development, 
this application needed to be considered following adoption of the 
Northumberland Local Plan in March 2022.  This application site was not 
now considered to be an accessible location, it was away from a 
settlement with no footpaths or public transport therefore tourism 
development in this location was considered to be unsustainable. 

• Caselaw considered whether buildings (with wheels) required planning 
permission if they were capable of being moved.  Caravans permanently 
sited in the same location for occupation required permission. 

• Permission may have been granted for similar structures located nearby, if 
they had been determined prior to adoption of the new Northumberland 
Local Plan. 

• The site was not in an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty. 

• The application site was located approximately 2.9 kilometers (as the crow 
flies) from Lambley. 

 
Councillor Morphet proposed acceptance of the officer’s recommendation to 
refuse the application which was seconded by Councillor Stewart. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, the motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be REFUSED permission for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 
 

71. 22/00236/LBC 
Listed Building Consent to install 18 solar panels in 2no. rows of 9no. to 
the entire southeast facing roofscape, which is the front/principal 
elevation of the property known as Dawson Place Hall, Allendale, NE47 
9PP 
 
There were no questions arising from the site visit videos which had been 
circulated prior to the meeting. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer introduced the application with the aid of a 
powerpoint presentation and confirmed that there were no updates. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided:- 
 

• It was considered that the 18 solar panels, which would cover the whole of 
the south east facing roofscape, would be extremely visible and would 
cause too much harm in the Conservation Area. 

• It was likely that more applications of this nature would be considered in 
the future and each application would be considered on its own merits.  An 
application if sensitively sited on a second roof which was not on the 
principal elevation, may be supported. 

Page 8



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 9 

• This application had been referred to the Committee due to the support 
given by Allendale Parish Council. 

• It was appreciated that alternative energy sources would be difficult to be 
located or approved at this particular location, but officers could not 
recommend approval where the measures would cause harm to the listed 
building.  They would also not enhance the distinctiveness of the 
conservation area, contrary to Policy ENV 9. 

 
Councillor Kennedy proposed that Listed Building Consent be granted, 
contrary to the officer’s recommendation, the wording of conditions be 
delegated to the Director of Planning in conjunction with the Chair.  He was of 
the opinion that the public benefit to the environment, reduction of C02 
emissions in line with the Councils declaration of a climate emergency 
outweighed the less than substantial harm.  This was seconded by Councillor 
Horncastle who suggested that the building was shielded by the adjacent 
library. 
 
Members of the Committee enquired whether officers had any photographs of 
the proposed solar panels as some panels were less intrusive and would 
blend in with the slate roof.  Unfortunately, only had the drawings supplied with 
the plans were available and it would not be possible to specify use of a less 
visually intrusive panel. 
 
Some of the Councillors understood the difficulties experienced by occupants 
of old buildings which were difficult to insulate and were looking at alternative 
methods of powering and heating their homes which were ‘greener’. 
 
The local member believed that solar panels had been approved elsewhere in 
the town and but perhaps not on a listed building.  Sources of renewable 
energy were also supported within the Allendale Neighbourhood Plan.  This 
dilemma would be repeated in the future and it would be desirable for the 
issue to be addressed via supplementary planning guidance and a holistic 
approach. 
 
Upon being put to the vote the results were as follows: - 
 
FOR: 4; AGAINST: 8; ABSTENTION: 1. 
 
The motional failed. 
 
Councillor Stewart proposed the officer’s recommendation that Listed Building 
Consent be refused which was seconded by Councillor Scott. 
 
Upon being put to the vote the results were as follows: - 
 
FOR: 8; AGAINST: 4; ABSTENTION: 1. 
 
RESOLVED that Listed Building Consent be REFUSED for the reason set out 
in the report. 
 

Page 9



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 10 

72. PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 
 
The report provided information on the progress of planning appeals. 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 
Councillor Horncastle left the meeting. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5.59 p.m. until 6.11 p.m. 
 
 
LOCAL AREA COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 

73. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 
 
There were no public questions. 
 
 

74. HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING 
 
Philip Soderquest, Service Director - Housing and Public Protection, outlined 
the report which updated members of the service provision for residents who 
are homeless, or at risk of homelessness, in Northumberland including key 
data and the services available for people sleeping rough.  (A copy of the 
report is enclosed with the signed minutes).  
 
He explained the duties placed on local authorities by the Homelessness Act 
2002 and the Homelessness reduction Act 2017.  Consultation earlier in 2022 
had resulted in a new draft Homelessness and Rough Sleeping Strategy 2022 
– 2024 which identified 5 priorities to meet the Government’s ambition that no 
one should be sleeping rough by 2027.  The strategy was to be presented to 
Cabinet for approval and adoption. 
 
The Northumberland Domestic Abuse Strategy 2021-2024 implemented 
recommendations of the Domestic Abuse Act 2021 with regard to statutory 
duties for safe accommodation and support. 
 
The committee were informed that there had been an increase in the number 
of applications to the Homelessness and Housing Options Service from 767 in 
2020/21 to 5,408 in 2021/22 due to a change in the way cases were recorded 
on the system.  The report provided a breakdown of the reasons for 
homelessness and current Council provision for temporary and emergency 
accommodation. 
 
In answers to questions, he provided the following information: 
 

• Officers were working with colleagues in planning to arrest the numbers of 
properties changing use from residential to Airbnb accommodation which 
was more financially lucrative to owners but was impacting on the number 
of residential properties available for let.  They were working with partners 

Page 10



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 11 

to increase housing supply, including building new Council properties, 
although costs had significantly increased in recent years and impacted on 
what could be delivered. 

• Approximately 40-50 council properties were sold each year under Right 
to Buy legislation. 

• The decent homes standard had applied to properties in the social rented 
sector since the early 2000’s.  This was under review and could be 
required to be met by private rented properties in the future, which could 
further impact on housing supply. 

• Often cases involved residents with complex needs and therefore the 
service worked in partnership with organisations such as Changing Lives 
to ensure that tenancies were sustainable. 

• They had an excellent working relationship with Advance Northumberland 
who had made brought back a number of properties back into residential 
use with hopefully more available in the future. 

• Eviction was treated as the last option by Housing providers, with the 
Homelessness and Housing Options Service working with all services to 
prevent homelessness.  Length of occupation of temporary 
accommodation varied but residents should be moved to other 
accommodation. 

• The Council would be unable to provide further accommodation to tenants 
if possession had been sought due to rent arrears, until such time as any 
arrears had been cleared.  To assist those seeking housing in the private 
rented sector, the council could, in specific circumstances assist by 
offering “paper” bond under the rent deposit guarantee scheme to other 
landlords. 

• The Council’s duty to provide accommodation depended on whether a 
tenant had become intentionally or unintentionally homeless.  If this was a 
consequence of their own anti-social behaviour, they would be provided 
with advice. 

• There had been 5 successful placements for rough sleepers since May 
2021.  There had been 20 referrals but not all accepted assistance as it 
was a lifestyle choice for some individuals. 

• An assessment of an individual’s needs was undertaken for each case of 
homelessness with involvement by the police and other agencies if 
identified at risk. 

 
The Director and the Homelessness and Housing Options Service were 
thanked for the assistance given to complex and demanding cases. 
 
RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted. 
 
 

75. PETITIONS 
 
This item was to: 
 
a) Receive any new petitions: 
 

Page 11



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 12 

It was reported that the e-petition to Request a speed limit on a section of the 
C234 between Warden Bridge and Fourstones had been closed and a report 
had been requested for the meeting on 14 March 2023. 
 
b) Consider reports on petitions previously received: 
 
There were none to consider. 
 
c) To consider updates on petitions previously considered: 
 
i. Peth Head, Hexham 
 
Robin McCartney, Highways Infrastructure Manager, reported that additional 
20mph repeater signs had been erected and it was hoped these would provide 
a reminder to motorists of the need to drive at 20mph. 
 
A further speed survey was also to be arranged as the data obtained in the 
previous survey was incomplete due to the equipment being damaged. 
 
ii. Allendale Road, Hexham 
 
Robin McCartney, Highways Infrastructure Manager, reported that since the 
petition had been discussed in March, officers had made several visits to the 
site and had identified a number of "features" which could easily be 
incorporated into a forthcoming planned maintenance scheme on Allendale 
Road.  This had been discussed with local councilors and included: 
 
- Proposals to raise the existing pedestrian crossing on Allendale Road near 

the Whetstone Bridge Road junction to encourage reduced speeds. 
- Provision of a ‘raised junction’ at the Hextol Terrace junction, to reduce 

speeds and improve visibility for pedestrians wishing to cross the road and 
for motorists exiting Hextol Terrace. 

- Provision of dropped kerbs at the existing bus parking area on Allendale 
Road which would improve access for those pedestrians travelling from 
the Causey Hill Road area. 

 
In answer to a question, he expected the work to be undertaken in April/May 
as they had been unable to get permits sooner. 
 
RESOLVED that the updates be noted. 
 
 

76. DIGITAL CONNECTIVITY INFRASTRUCTURE ACCELERATION PROJECT 
 
Gillian Cowell, Business and Community Engagement Officer, 
iNorthumberland Programme, attended the meeting to share information with 
Members about the Digital Connectivity Infrastructure Acceleration (DCIA) 
project.  (A copy of the presentation is enclosed with the signed minutes). 
 
The presentation outlined the following information:  

Page 12



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 13 

 

• The main aim of the project was to drive improved connectivity, including 
5G, to transform the public sector in the North East and help address 
deprivation, inequality, poor health outcomes, and drive economic growth, 
sustainability and inward investment. 

• This was one of 8 pilot projects funded by the Department of Culture 
Media and Sport. 

• Circa £0.5 million had been awarded to North of Tyne Combined Authority, 
Northumberland County Council, North Tyneside Council, Newcastle City 
Council, South Tyneside Council, Sunderland City Council. 

• The project intended to make LA asset information (including streetlights, 
public buildings, CCTV columns and land) visible to commercial operators 
using a digital asset management platform.  It also had potential to be 
expanded to include other partners and bus shelters and other street 
furniture. 

• They hoped to streamline the process, including use of a standardised 
approach and agreements using ECC compliant guidelines for calculating 
the commercial value of assets for rent.  This would make it easier and 
quicker for operators to know the assets available and types of equipment 
the assets could take. 

 
She confirmed that it was intended that the scheme would be sustainable and 
used beyond the initial period of the project. 
 

• The project was to facilitate improved connectivity across the north east 
and where possible include 4G where this was currently not available. 

• A written response would be circulated from the project officer regarding 
information on use of 5G and public health. 

• It was believed there would be protocols for the sharing of assets if more 
than one provider was interested.  This would be checked when officers 
met with DCMS the following week. 

 
RESOLVED that the information be received. 
 
 

77. LOCAL SERVICES UPDATE 
 
Members received the following updates from the Area Managers from 
Neighbourhood Services and Technical Services: 
 
Neighbourhood Services: 
 

• Grass cutting had finished for the year with leaf clearance hot spots being 
prioritised by both grounds maintenance and cleansing staff.  The team 
were also responding to reported areas of concern as soon as possible as 
they were a safety issue to prevent them becoming a trip hazard when 
wet. 

• The areas around the war memorials had been tidied the previous week 
prior to the Remembrance Day services. 

Page 13



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 14 

• The winter cut back of shrubs and hedges was underway. 

• Some of the Grounds and Cleansing team were part of the winter services 
rota with other staff assisting with footpath gritting when required. 

• Waste collection services were currently running well and fully staffed after 
problems experienced earlier in the year with a shortage of HGV drivers. 

• There were 3 weeks remaining of the garden waste collection service.  
Refuse collections would be a day late in the weeks commencing 26th 
December and 2nd January, due to the bank holidays.  Existing rounds 
continued to be reviewed with houses being built and additional take up of 
the garden waste collection service with collections in some areas now 
being passed to depots in the southeast. 

• The interval between collections for the glass recycling trial was to be 
extended to 6 weeks after the collection in January, as capacity in the bins 
and vehicles identified that this was feasible and would significantly reduce 
costs.  A text alert service was available to receive reminders about 
collection dates if householders subscribed.  Participation rates and yields 
would be closely monitored and returned to 4-weekly if negatively 
impacted. 

 
It was agreed that clarification would be obtained after the meeting regarding 
charges for the disposal of rubble at Household Waste Recovery Centres. 
 
Technical Services: 
 

• Highway inspections were up to date in the Tynedale area with 5,997 
actionable defects recorded over the last 3 months and 96.4% repaired in 
accordance with the policy. 

• The main slurry sealing work had been completed before the temperature 
had dropped and preparatory work had commencing ahead of the 2023 
season. 

• The gulley tanker was continuing its routine cleansing programme with the 
dedicated drainage gang and JCB renewing gully pots, cross drains and 
ditching in known problem areas. 

• A number of LTP surfacing works had been completed and it was 
anticipated that the U & C investment projects in the west would be 
completed before the end of the financial year. 

• Carriageway permanent repairs refurbishment / patching had been 
undertaken at 5 locations out of the areas budget allocation where there 
were concerns regarding the extent of deterioration. 

• A number of safety schemes and other works had also been completed. 

• An update on the County wide winter services arrangements had been 
circulated electronically with no change to service standards or the winter 
maintenance policy since the previous year.  The same roads would be 
treated within the specified timescales by 105 members of staff with 
assistance from colleagues in Neighbourhood Services and farmers.  The 
3-shift rota had commenced on 31 October.  Grit bins and heaps were 
replenished throughout the season 

• All requests and issues regarding winter services during snow and ice 
events were to be directed via the Contact Centre on 0345 600 6400.  

Page 14



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 15 

During out of hours periods calls were transferred to the Fire and Rescue 
Control Room who would contact relevant members of staff on duty at that 
time. 

 
The following information was provided in response to issues raised by 
Members: 
 

• Weather stations including road sensors had been upgraded during 2022. 

• Some dry test runs with the gritters had taken place in the last few weeks 
as part of the winter preparations.  A query regarding unexpected use of 
the gritters would be investigated on provision of the date, time and route. 

• Grit heaps would be located next to main junctions on the A68. 
 
RESOLVED that the updates be noted. 
 
 

78. SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS 
 
At 7.15 pm it was agreed that standing orders be suspended to continue the 
meeting beyond the 3-hour limit. 
 
RESOLVED that in accordance with the Council’s Constitution, standing 
orders be suspended and the meeting continue over the 3-hour limit. 
 
 

79. LOCAL SERVICES – HIGHWAYS MAINTENANCE 
 
David Laux, Head of Technical Services, Robin McCartney, Highways 
Infrastructure Manager and Kris Westerby, Highways Delivery Manager were 
in attendance to provide an overview on the operation and challenges of 
Highways Maintenance.  (A copy of the presentation is enclosed with the 
signed minutes.)  
 
The presentation included: 
 

• Reference to the Highway Law on Maintenance - section 41(1) Highways 
Act 1980 “...duty to maintain the highway.” 

• Definition of highways assets 

• Processes followed to manage and maintain the safety of the asset and 
minimise public liability exposure. 

• Definition of functional road hierarchy and inspection frequencies. 

• Assessment of defects and repair response times where hazardous 
criteria met. 

• Management of footways and cycleways, bridges, drainage, gully 
data/monitoring, other assets (street lighting, traffic lights, signs and lines, 
safety fences, soft landscaping). 

• Current performance data. 

Page 15



Ch.’s Initials……… 
Tynedale Local Area Council, 15 November 2022 16 

• Annual budgets in excess of £25 million with additional funding from DfT 
Challenge Fund and additional capital funding for U and C footway 
programme etc. 

• New equipment and innovative new systems to improve the service and 
provide feedback to members of the public. 

 
Members expressed their appreciation to the officers for the informative 
presentation and work undertaken by everyone in the Highways team.  It was 
suggested that it would be beneficial if there were a highways maintenance 
video similar to the winter readiness film. 
 
The following issues were highlighted by Councillors:  
 

• Insurance claims had peaked in 2018/2019 with 250 claims received 
within a 6-month period following damage to the highway network as a 
result of the extreme winter weather from the ‘Beast from the East’.  
Officers worked closely with colleagues in the insurance section and 
Zurich Insurance to provide evidence regarding inspections with many 
claims successfully defended.  The amount of insurance paid out in 
relation to any specific claim where the Council was found to be liable 
depended on the type of case and varied from small amounts for say a 
puncture to larger amounts for those with serious injuries following an 
accident. 

• The new technology being developed for fault reporting would be 
application based which would appeal to the younger demographic. 

 
RESOLVED that the presentation be received. 
 
 

80. LOCAL AREA COUNCIL WORK PROGRAMME 
 
A list of agreed items for future Local Area Council meetings was circulated.  
(A copy is enclosed with the minutes.) 
 
Members were invited to email any requests to the Chair and / or Democratic 
Services Officer between meetings. 
 
RESOLVED that the work programme be noted. 
 
 

81. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The next meeting (planning only) would be held on Tuesday 13 December 
2022 at 4.00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR _______________________ 
 
DATE _______________________ 

Page 16



 

   

 

TYNEDALE LOCAL AREA COUNCIL  

DATE:  10TH JANUARY 2023  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

PETITION – WENTWORTH CAR PARK & ALEMOUTH ROAD CAR PARK, 
HEXHAM 

Report of: Service Director - Local Services, Paul Jones  

Cabinet Member: John Riddle, Environment and Local Services   
________________________________________________________________________
Purpose of report 

To respond to the e petition which closed on 30th September 2023 regarding the provision 
of long stay parking bays at Wentworth Car Park and Alemouth Road Car Park in Hexham.  

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Local Area Council note the content of this report, and are made 
aware that the issue raised has now been resolved as detailed in the decision report 
“Introduction of and Amendments to Off-Street Car Parks, Hexham” which is attached as 
Appendix A.  

 
Link to Corporate Plan 
 
How - “We want to be efficient, open and work for everyone” 
Enjoying - “We want you to love where you live” 
Connecting - “We want you to have access to the things you need” 
 
Key Issues 

1. The County Council has invested in additional car park capacity for Hexham through 

the creation of the new 250 space long stay car park at Alemouth Road (the Bunker 

site). This investment resulted from the Hexham Parking Study which was completed 

in 2017 and which forecasted an additional 247 spaces being needed by 2031.  

2. Following creation of this additional parking, consideration had been given to the 

correct balance of long stay, medium stay and short stay parking in the town centre. 

This had also been recommended in the 2017 parking study. Proposals had 

therefore been put forward to convert all of the long stay parking in Wentworth car 

park to medium stay, with the long stay provision being provided at Alemouth Road. 

A Delegated Decision Report had been approved to this effect. 

3. However, concerns were raised by local County Councillors and other local 

stakeholders about the proposed removal of all of the long stay parking facilities in 

Wentworth Car Park.  

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



   

 

- 2 - 

4. A petition was also opened on 30th June 2022 requesting that Northumberland 

County Council keep Wentworth Car Park “as is” with no change so the additional 

long stay bays at the Hexham Alemouth Road Car Park (bunker site) help to meet 

the high demand of all day parking in Hexham. The petition closed with 564 

signatures on 30th September 2022. 

5. In response to the concerns raised, further consideration has been given to the 

balance of long stay and medium stay parking. These changes occurred during the 

period the petition was open. The new proposal is that rather than converting all long 

stay spaces within Wentworth car park to medium stay, approximately 100 of the all-

day parking spaces within the Wentworth car park will be retained, with the 

remaining all-day spaces converted to medium stay parking. This therefore provides 

the overall net gain in long stay parking spaces that the petition sought with a 

significant number of long stay spaces being retained in Wentworth car park.  

6. An addendum to the original decision report was prepared and agreed and can be 

found in Appendix A below. This was signed on 13th July 2023. The Traffic 

Regulation Order for the proposed changes was advertised from 28th July to 19th 

August 2022 and no objections were received. The Alemouth Road car park opened 

to the public at the end of November 2022 and the changes to Wentworth car park 

are due to take place during January 2023 to avoid any disruption from re-lining 

activity in the car park on the busy run-up to Christmas.    

Background 

The Petition 

7. The County Council has received a 564-name petition stating, “We are petitioning 
NCC to keep Wentworth Car Parking as is so the additional long stay bays at the 
Hexham Alemouth Road Car Park (bunker site) help to meet the high demand of all 
day parking in Hexham”. 

“The decision from NCC is to make Wentworth Car Park short and medium parking 
only, with all long stay parking only available at the Hexham Alemouth Car Park 
(bunker site). Wentworth currently has 283 long stay bays which will all become max 
4 hour stay bays. It is understood there will be 250 white bays at the bunker site. The 
long stay parking availability in Hexham will be reduced by 33 spaces”. 

“The Hexham Alemouth Road Car Park (bunker site) includes the newly built Travel 
Lodge. We can easily assume that some of their guests will park in the white / long 
stay bays which may further reduce the total number of white / long stay bays”.  

“We do not believe you should prioritise one demographic over another. Residents 
(who live in close proximity to Wentworth without parking or on street parking and 
unable to purchase residents parking permits), workers in local businesses/ hospital, 
commuters, guests at Hexham hotels without parking (such as The County and (under 
renovation) Coach & Horses), residents of Hexham and tourists who want to stay more 
than 4 hours could be impacted by the decision and are valid when considering 
parking needs of the town”. 

Page 18



   

 

- 3 - 

“We should be encouraging visitors to Hexham to stay longer than four hours! Hexham 
is holding more & more events which encourages visitors to stay all day - the proposal 
actively hinders this”.  

“The blue / medium stay bays at Wentworth Car Park usually have the most spaces 
available, therefore the logic of creating additional blue / medium stay bays is 
perplexing. The long stay / white bays are in high demand, so reducing the capacity 
by 30 with potential further loss to travel lodge guests and making them less 
accessible is equally baffling”. 

Comments 

8. Since the petition report was created, an addendum to the original decision report has 
been agreed. This was signed on 13th July 2023. A copy of this report, titled 
“Introduction of and Amendments to Off-Street Car Parks, Hexham” is attached as 
Appendix A. 

It has therefore been agreed to retain approximately 100 of the all-day parking spaces 
within Wentworth car park with the maximum length of stay of 24 hours and no return 
within 4 hours, with the remaining all day spaces converted to medium stay parking.  

Proposed Actions 

9. None required as issue has already been resolved.  

Implications 

Policy The response to the issues raised in this petition is consistent 
with LTP Policies. 

Finance and 
value for money 

n/a 

Legal The Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 

(England) Regulations 2000 confirm that the matters within 

this report are not functions of the Council’s Executive. 

Procurement None 

Human 
Resources 

None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment 

attached) 

None 

Page 19



   

 

- 4 - 

Yes ☐  No ☐   N/A       

☒ 

Risk Assessment n/a 

Crime & Disorder n/a 

Customer 
Consideration 

Issues the petition has identified have already been 
addressed. 

Carbon reduction n/a 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

n/a 

Wards Hexham Central with Acomb & Hexham East 

 
 
Background papers 
None 

 

Appendix Index  

Appendix A – Delegated Decision Report “Introduction of and Amendments to Off-Street 

Car Parks, Hexham” 

 

Report sign off 

 Full Name of 

Officer 

Monitoring Officer/Legal Suki Binjal 

Executive Director of Finance & S151 Officer Jan Willis 

Relevant Executive Director Rob Murfin 

Acting Chief Executive Rick O’Farrell 

Portfolio Holder John Riddle 

 

Author and Contact Details 

Neil Snowdon – Principal Programme Officer (Highways Improvement Team) 

  

Page 20



   

 

- 5 - 

APPENIDIX A – Addendum to Delegated Decision Report “Introduction of and  

Amendments to Off-Street Car Parks, Hexham” 

 
Delegated Decision  

 
 
RECORD OF DECISION TAKEN BY  
SERVICE DIRECTOR – LOCAL SERVICES  
 
Paul Jones  
___________________________________________________________________  

ADDENDUM  
Introduction of and Amendments to Off-Street Car Parks, Hexham  
 
Cabinet Member: Councillor John Riddle  
 
12 July 2022  
______________________________________________________________  
Purpose and Recommendations of Original Report  
 
Purpose of Report  
This report sets out the background to the proposed changes to off-street car parking 
restrictions in Hexham town centre.  
 
Recommendations  
It is recommended that the proposed time limit amendments to Wentworth Car Park and 
proposed restrictions at the new Hexham Alemouth Road Car Park (old bunker site) are 
implemented.  
 
Link to Corporate Plan  
Living - “We want you to feel safe, healthy and cared for”  
Enjoying - “We want you to love where you live”  
 
Key Issues  
 

1. Studies carried out in 2017 identified a lack of available parking provision compared to 
demand in Northumberland’s main town centres including Hexham.  

2. The proposal has been developed in order to encourage vehicle turnover and increase 
parking facilities at Wentworth Car Park and Alemouth Road Car Park.  

3. The car park at the Hexham Alemouth site has been built by the developer and is to be 
purchased by the County Council, however the associated parking order changes will be 
funded from the 2022/23 Local Transport Plan (LTP) programme.  

 

Page 21



   

 

- 6 - 

Purpose of Addendum  
 
The original Delegated Decision Report approved proposals to replace all long-stay parking 
restrictions within Wentworth Car Park with medium stay parking, with 250 spaces designated 
for long-stay parking instead being made available in the new Alemouth Road Car Park. 
However, concerns have been raised by local County Councillors and other local stakeholders 
about the proposed removal of all day parking facilities in Wentworth Car Park. It is therefore 
now proposed to retain approximately 100 of the all day parking spaces within Wentworth car 
park with the maximum length of stay of 24 hours and no return within 4 hours, with the 
remaining all day spaces converted to medium stay parking. Details of this new proposal can 
be found below in Figure 1.  
 
It is still the County Council’s intention to provide additional disabled parking bays along the 
south perimeter of Wentworth Car Park near to the public toilets, however these will not be 
restricted to the medium-stay hours identified within the car park signage. The exact location 
of these will be subsequently agreed once the new changes are approved.  
 

 
Fig. 1: Proposed amendments to Wentworth Car Park, Hexham  

 
The plan highlights the extents of each car park and the proposed area hatched in green 
indicates the approximate location of parking bays proposed to be reduced from a 24 hour 
maximum length of stay to a 4 hour maximum length of stay.  
An Intend Order for the proposals agreed in the original Delegated Decision was recently 
advertised. This will be withdrawn and a new Intend Order incorporating the new proposals will 
be prepared and advertised.  

 

Page 22



   

 

- 7 - 

Implications Arising out of the Report 

 

Policy  Consistent with existing policies  

Finance and value for 
money  

Parking order changes will be funded from the 
2022/23 Local Transport Plan (LTP) programme  

Legal  Motorists will be required to comply with the Traffic 
Regulation Order  

Procurement  Signage and road markings to meet Regulations for 
Traffic Regulation Orders  

Human Resources  None  

Property  None  

Equalities  

(Impact Assessment attached)  

Yes ☐ No ☐ N/A ☐  

N/A  

Risk Assessment  None  

Crime & Disorder  Regulations in place to carry out enforcement  

Customer Consideration  Off-street car parks provide a safer location to leave 
vehicles for all road users  

Carbon reduction  None  

Wards  Hexham Central with Acomb & Hexham East  

 

 
Background Papers:  
 
File reference –  
S:\Highways\PROJECT\18\FC PARKING SCHEMES\FC180024 - Hexham Bunker Site  
 
Author and Contact Details  
___________________________________________________________________  

 
Report Author  William Binks, Programme Officer 
 
 

 
DECISION TAKEN 
 
Title of Officer:  Service Director, Local Services  
Subject:  Proposed off-street car parking changes at Hexham.  
Consultation:  Statutory consultees will be notified of these changes.  

Page 23



   

 

- 8 - 

Decision Taken:  To retain approximately 100 of the all day parking spaces within 
Wentworth car park with the maximum length of stay of 24 hours and 
no return within 4 hours, with the remaining all day spaces converted 
to medium stay parking.  

 
 
Signature of Director  
 

 
Date  
13/07/2022  

 

Page 24



   

 

10 January 2023 Page 1 

 

 

 
 
 

Northumberland County Council  
 

Tynedale Local Area Council  
 

Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nichola Turnbull: 01670 622617 - Nichola.Turnbull@northumberland.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:paul.allen01@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:paul.allen01@northumberland.gov.uk


   

 

10 January 2023 Page 2 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
(1) To enhance good governance in the area and ensure that the Council’s policies take account of the needs and aspirations of 

local communities and do not discriminate unfairly between the different Areas. 
(2) To advise the Cabinet on budget priorities and expenditure within the Area. 
(3) To consider, develop and influence policy and strategy development of the Council, its arms-length organisations, and other 

relevant bodies, to ensure that they meet local requirements and facilitate efficient and transparent decision making. 
(4) To receive information, consider and comment on matters associated with service delivery including those undertaken in 

partnership agencies, affecting the local area to ensure that they meet local requirements, including matters relating to 
community safety, anti-social behaviour and environmental crime. 

(5) To consider and refer to Cabinet any issues from a local community perspective with emerging Neighbourhood Plans within their 
area, and consider local planning applications as per the planning delegation scheme. 

(6) To consider and recommend adjustments to budget priorities in relation to Local Transport Plan issues within their area, and to 
make decisions in relation to devolved capital highway maintenance allocations. 

(7) To engage, through the appropriate networks, with all key stakeholders from the public, private, voluntary and community sectors 
to facilitate the delivery of area priorities.  This will include undertaking regular liaison with parish and town councils. 

(8) To inform, consult and engage local communities in accordance with Council policy and guidance, through the appropriate 
networks. 

(9) To, as appropriate, respond or refer with recommendations to local petitions and councillor calls for action. 
(10) To make certain appointments to outside bodies as agreed by Council. 
(11) To determine applications for grant aid from the Community Chest, either through Panels for individual Local Area Councils, or 

through the Panel of Local Area Council Chairs for countywide applications. 
(12) To refer and receive appropriate issues for consideration to or from other Council Committees, and as appropriate invite Portfolio 

Holders to attend a meeting if an item in their area of responsibility is to be discussed. 
(13) To exercise the following functions within their area:- 

(a) the Council’s functions in relation to the survey, definition, maintenance, diversion, stopping up and creation of public rights of 
way. 

(b) the Council’s functions as the Commons Registration Authority for common land and town/village greens in Northumberland. 
(c) the Council’s functions in relation to the preparation and maintenance of the Rights of Way Improvement Plan. 
(d) the Council’s functions in relation to the Northumberland National Park and County Joint Local Access Forum (Local Access 

Forums (England) Regulations 2007. 
(e) the Council’s role in encouraging wider access for all to the County’s network of public rights of way and other recreational 

routes. 
 
  

P
age 26



   

 

10 January 2023 Page 3 

ISSUES TO BE SCHEDULED/CONSIDERED 
 

Standard items updates:  Planning Applications (monthly), public question time (bimonthly, not at planning only meetings), petitions 
(bimonthly, not at planning only meetings), members’ local improvement schemes (quarterly) 
 

To be listed:  
 

 

Northumberland County Council 
Tynedale Local Area Council 
Work Programme 2022-23 

 

 
10 January 2023 
 

 • Budget Presentation 

• Local Services Update 

• Petition Report – Wentworth Car Park & Hexham Alemouth Road Car Park, Hexham 
 

 
14 February 2023 
 

 • Planning and Rights of Way 

• Local Transport Plan 
 

 
14 March 2023 
 

 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Petition Report – Request to impose a speed limit on a section of the C234 between Warden Bridge and Fourstones 

• Policing and Community Safety Update 

• Other items to be confirmed 
 

 

P
age 27



   

 

10 January 2023 Page 4 

11 April 2023 
 

 • Planning and Rights of Way 
 

 
9 May 2023 
 

 • Planning 

• Local Services Update 

• Fostering Presentation 

• Other items to be confirmed 
 

 
 

 

Northumberland County Council 
Tynedale Local Area Council Monitoring Report 2022-2023 

Ref Date Report Decision Updates (if any) 

1 10 May 2022 Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

RESOLVED that the information be noted.  

2 10 May 2022 Petition: Dangerous 
Road (Peth Head, 
Hexham) 

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted 
and the following proposed actions be supported: 
  
a) Introduction of additional repeater signs and 

20mph roundels (road markings) to be provided at 
either end of Peth Head. 

 

P
age 28



   

 

10 January 2023 Page 5 

b) A speed survey be arranged to assess actual 
vehicle speeds. Depending on the outcomes of 
the survey, consideration be given to whether any 
further measures would be appropriate. 

3 10 May 2022 Tyne Valley 
Community Rail 
Partnership 

RESOLVED that the presentation be received and 
that the comments be noted. 

 

4 10 May 2022 Outside Bodies RESOLVED that the following list of appointments 
be confirmed: 

Groundwork North East - Land of Oak and Iron 
Project Board – G Stewart  
Haltwhistle Partnership Limited - A Sharp  
Haltwhistle Swimming & Leisure Centre Man. Cttee - 
A Sharp  
Hexham TORCH Centre Management Committee - 
T Cessford  
Prudhoe Community Partnership – A Scott  
Queens Hall Arts Trust – SH Fairless-Aitken 
Sport Tynedale – N Oliver  
Tyne Valley Community Rail Partnership Board – H 
Waddell  
 

 

P
age 29



   

 

10 January 2023 Page 6 

5 10 May 2022 Members Local 
Improvement 
Schemes – 
Progress Report  

RESOLVED that the report be noted.   

6 12 July 2022 Broadband Update RESOLVED that the information be noted.  

7 12 July 2022 Members Local 
Improvement 
Schemes – 
Progress Report  

RESOLVED that the report be noted.   

8 11 October 
2022 

North of Tyne Rural 
Business Growth 
Service 

RESOLVED that the information be noted.  

9 11October 
2022 

Members Local 
Improvement 
Schemes – 
Progress Report  

RESOLVED that the report be noted.   

P
age 30



   

 

10 January 2023 Page 7 

10 15 November 
2022 

Homelessness and 
Rough Sleeping 

RESOLVED that the contents of the report be noted.  

11 15 November 
2022 

Digital Connectivity 
Infrastructure 
Acceleration 
Project 

RESOLVED that the information be received.  

12 15 November 
2022 

Local Services – 
Highways 
Maintenance 

RESOLVED that the presentation be received.  

     

     

 
NT 20.12.22 

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	2 MINUTES
	PRESENT
	MEMBERS

	5 PETITIONS
	8 LOCAL AREA COUNCIL WORK PROGRAMME

